
 

 
 

Board 

of 

Governors’ Meeting 
December 17, 2015 

 

 

 

 



     
        AGENDA 

FSU BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ MEETING 

DECEMBER 17, 2015, 9:00 A.M. 

LOCATION: BOARD ROOM, FALCON CENTER 

1201 LOCUST AVENUE, FAIRMONT, WV 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
A. Roll Call 

B. Public Comment 

 C. Approve Agenda ……………………………………………............................Action Item 

    

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF OCTOBER 22, 2015..………………………….Tab 1  Action Item 

 

III. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

  

IV. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

 

V. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS 

 A. Constituent Reports  

 B. Foundation (RJ Gimbl) 

 C. Construction Project Updates (Tom Tucker) 

  

VI. CONSENT AGENDA 

 A. Financial Report for Periods Ending August 31, 2015, 

  September 30, 2015, and October 31, 2015…………………………Tab 2  Action Item 

  

VII. ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE (John Myers, Chair) 

 

 A.  The 2015 Update and Report for the Institutional Compact...…..Tab 3  Action Item 

 

VIII. ATHLETIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE (Frank Washenitz, Chair) 

 

IX. BY-LAWS COMMITTEE  (Ron Tucker, Chair) 

 

X. ENROLLMENT/HOUSING-STUDENT LIFE COMMITTEE (Dixie Yann, Chair) 

 

XI. FINANCE COMMITTEE (Mark Pallotta and John Schirripa, Co-Chairs) 

 A. Approval of Autism Individualized Mentoring and Support Program  

  (AIMS) Program Fee …………………………………………………..... Tab 4  Action Item 

 

 B. Approval of Housing Project Design Review..……………………….. Tab 5  Action Item 

   

XII. STUDENT HOUSING COMMITTEE (Aaron Hawkins, Chair) 

   

XIII. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (Mark Pallotta, Chair) 

 

XIV. POSSIBLE EXECUTIVE SESSION - Under the Authority of West Virginia Code  §6-9A-4 to 

Discuss Property Issues 

   

XV. ADJOURNMENT  

 

NEXT MEETING DATE:  FEBRUARY 18, 2016, 9:00 A.M.,  

LOCATION:  BOARD ROOM, FALCON CENTER 

1201 LOCUST AVENUE, FAIRMONT, WV  



 

 

Tab 1 

Page 3 of 59



 

 

 FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY 

  BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

  MEETING MINUTES 

  OCTOBER 22, 2015 

CAPERTON CENTER, 

501 WEST MAIN STREET, CLARKSBURG, WV 

 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

A. Roll Call 

 

Chairman Mark Pallotta convened a meeting of the Fairmont State 

University (FSU) Board of Governors (BOG) on October 22, 2015, beginning 

at approximately 9:00 a.m. at the Caperton Center in Clarksburg, WV. 

At the request of Chairman Pallotta, Judy Biafore conducted a roll call of the 

Board of Governors.  Present for the meeting were board members Chris 

Courtney, Holly Fluharty, Aaron Hawkins, Kelly Humphreys, John Myers, 

Mark Pallotta, Budd Sapp, Ron Tucker, and Dixie Yann. Bryan Towns 

participated by conference call.  John Schirripa and Frank Washenitz were 

absent. 

 

  After the roll call, Chairman Pallotta asked for moment of silence to   

  remember Annie Marie Tucker- Linear, who passed away on September 18,  

  2015.  She was a Fairmont State grad and the sister of board    

  member, Ron Tucker. 

Others present were President Rose and President’s Council members 

Christina Lavorata, Kaye Widney, Ann Booth, John Lympany, and Debbie 

Stiles.   Assistant Vice President for Facilities, Tom Tucker, Construction 

Manager, Stephanie Slaubaugh, Athletic Director, Tim McNeely, Gary 

Bennett, Immediate Past Chair of the Fairmont State Foundation, and RJ 

Gimbl, newly appointed President of the Fairmont State Foundation Board, 

also attended. 

 

 B. Public Comment 

 

Chris Courtney reported no one signed up for public comment.   

 

 C.      Approval of Agenda   

Ron Tucker made a motion to approve the agenda.  Aaron Hawkins seconded.  

The motion passed. 

 

 

Page 4 of 59



Fairmont State University Board of Governors 

Meeting Minutes 

October 22, 2015 - Cont’d 

 

 

 

 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF AUGUST 20, 2015 

Budd Sapp made a motion to approve the minutes of August 20, 2015, and Dixie 

Yann seconded.  The motion passed. 

 

III.  CHAIRMAN’S REPORT   

 

 A. Chairman Pallotta thanked Dr. McClure and the staff at the Caperton  

  Center for hosting the Board of Governors’ meeting there.  He also   

  thanked those providing constituent reports and Carolyn Fletcher who  

  explained the concept of Composite Financial Index (CFI) and what it   

  means to FSU. 

 

 B. He also stated that it was Homecoming week and the 150th year celebration  

  for Fairmont State.  He said several activities surrounding Homecoming were 

  happening (up through Saturday) and reminded all Board members if they  

  wanted to ride the trolley in the parade to meet at the Alumni Center. 

 C. Chairman Pallotta stated that the next Board meeting will be on December  

  10th (2015) back in the Board Room on the 3rd floor of the Falcon Center on  

  the main campus. 

  

IV. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

 

 A. President Rose reported that due to the State of West Virginia’s projected  

  $250 million deficit because of decreasing energy prices, Governor Tomblin  

  announced a 4% budget reduction for most State agencies.  She said for  

  Fairmont State this means $624,000 must be cut from the budget. 

 

  B. President Rose extended congratulations to FSU BOG member  

  Aaron  Hawkins for being selected for the Alumnus of Achievement Award as 

  part of the Homecoming 2015 Sesquicentennial Celebration. 

  

 C.  She reminded the Board there will be a reception after the Faculty   

  Senate meeting on November 10th (2015) from 3:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. to meet  

  Faculty Senate members and other faculty. 

 

 D. President Rose stated there was a copy (8 pages) of Higher Ed Terms   

  provided to each BOG member. 

 

   

V. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS 

 

 A. Constituent Reports 

 

Page 5 of 59



Fairmont State University Board of Governors 

Meeting Minutes 

October 22, 2015 - Cont’d 

 

 

 

 

  Informative reports from each of the following individuals representing three  

  different areas gave the Board an overview of how they serve students  

  or what it is like to be a student at FSU. 

 

 1.    Classified Staff Representative – Ms. Sherry Mitchell –    

   Information Systems Specialist – Enrollment Services 

 

  2. Faculty Representative – Dr. Jennifer Myers – Associate Professor  

   of Criminal Justice and Coordinator of the Masters in Criminal  

   Justice Program 

 

  3. Student Representative – Mr. Bradley Cox – Senior Business Major 

 

 B. Foundation (Gary Bennett) 

 

  Gary Bennett, Immediate Past Chair of the Fairmont State (FS)   

  Foundation, introduced RJ Gimbl, newly appointed President and CEO, also  

  of the FS Foundation.  

 

  Mr. Bennett reported that $450,000 in gifts and $22,395,000 in assets were  

  received as of September 30, (2015).  He said that they had a two million  

  dollar  rejection due to the stock market decline this past year.  

 

  Mr. Bennett also stated that $25,000 was received for the Annual Fund  

  which was a result of the recent 2,600 mailings by the FS Foundation. 

 

  He reported that another project’s goal, the Next 150 (Years), is to raise  

  $150,000 with a challenge of $300,000.  He said that this would enable  

  them to increase recruiting scholarships from $75,000 per year to $90,000 per 

  year. 

 

  Mr. Bennett said that $37,500 was awarded in NIP (Neighborhood   

  Investment Program) credits and that $75,000 was raised because of this  

  program.  He said that they would apply for supplemental credits. 

 

  He said he has been working with Mr. Gimbl on some endowment funds from 

  three different donors amounting to $325,000 and hoped    

  to have them finished before he leaves on December 31, 2015. 

 

  Mr. Bennett also stated that there will be a Planned Giving Wine and   

  Cheese Reception tomorrow and that they continue to work with the School of 

  Business, the School of Science and Technology, and the Library on projects  

  for the Title III Grant. 

 

 

 

 

Page 6 of 59



Fairmont State University Board of Governors 

Meeting Minutes 

October 22, 2015 - Cont’d 

 

 

 

 

 C. Construction Project Updates (Tom Tucker) 

 

 Stephanie Slaubaugh, Construction Manager, gave an update on the various 

 projects that are currently underway on campus.  Weekly updates are 

 available online at: http://www.fairmontstate.edu/adminfiscalaffairs/physical-

 plant/construction. 

 

 D. Composite Financial Index (Carolyn Fletcher) 

 

  Carolyn Fletcher, Director of Accounting for FSU, explained Composite 

Financial Index (CFI) and provided the following handout (on the pages that 

follow): 

 

  

Page 7 of 59



Page 8 of 59



Page 9 of 59



Page 10 of 59



Page 11 of 59



Page 12 of 59



Fairmont State University Board of Governors 

Meeting Minutes 

October 22, 2015 - Cont’d 

 

 

 

 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 Ron Tucker moved to accept the following Consent Agenda: 

 

A.  Financial Report for Period Ending July 31, 2015 

 

 John Myers seconded.  The motion passed. 

 

VII.  ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE (John Myers, Chair) 

 

 John Myers, Chair of the Academic Affairs Committee, stated that the Academic 

Affairs Committee recently met (October 9, 2015) and that all Committee members 

were present.  He also reported that Dr. Christina Lavorata, Provost and Vice 

President for Academic Affairs, had asked the Chairs of the various areas (for 

program continuations) to explain the various reports.  Mr. Myers stated that this 

had been very helpful.  He then asked Dr. Lavorata to come forward to discuss the 

reports below and answer any questions the Board may have.  

  

 John Myers then moved to approve the following: 

 

 A. The 2018 Targets Metrics (2017-2018 Data) for the  

  2015 Institutional Compact 

 

 Budd Sapp seconded.  The motion passed. 

 

 John Myers moved to approve the following: 

 

 B. Textbook Adoption Report 

 

 Ron Tucker seconded.  The motion passed. 

 

 John Myers moved to approve the following: 

 

 C. Program Continuations in the College of Science & Technology 

  

 Budd Sapp seconded.  The motion passed. 

 

 The following was provided as information only: 

  

 D. Grad Studies Report 

 

 

VIII. ATHLETIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE (Frank Washenitz, Chair) 

 

 Chairman Pallotta asked Tim McNeely, FSU’s Athletic Director, to give an update 

 for the Athletic Affairs Committee. 

 

Page 13 of 59



Fairmont State University Board of Governors 

Meeting Minutes 

October 22, 2015 - Cont’d 

 

 

 

 

 Mr. McNeely stated that there had been an inner squad scrimmage game of the  

 men’s basketball team played recently and it was well attended by students.  He also 

 said that the football team had won three of their last four games and that the fall 

 sports are now winding down.   

 

 He reminded all that this is Homecoming week and said that they still have some 

 tickets available for the Hall of Fame Banquet.  He said the football game will begin 

 at 2:00 p.m. on Saturday. 

 

 Mr. McNeely thanked Dr. Courtney, United Hospital, and Dr. Rose for helping the 

 athletic teams get a medical cart which is a much needed piece of equipment to  

 transport injured players from the field.  It will be unveiled during halftime of 

 the football game. 

 

 He said that the FSAA is having a golf tournament next Friday at Pete Dye Golf 

 Course in appreciation of the $1,000 Club donors.   

 

 Mr. McNeely also reported that there will be an elimination dinner hosted by Frank 

 Stern on Tuesday, November 3rd and that basketball season tickets are now for sale.  

  

IX. BY-LAWS COMMITTEE (Ron Tucker, Chair) 

 

 Ron Tucker, Chair of the By-Laws Committee, reported that the by-laws are being  

 reviewed and that he has also reviewed by-laws at other institutions in the State (of 

 West Virginia) and also one outside of the State.   

 

 He said that we are guided by West Virginia State Code as to what we can and 

 cannot do.  He also said that he and the other committee members would have a 

 recommendation soon as to whether they would propose changes or additions in the 

 by-laws.  If any changes or additions are proposed, Mr. Tucker said they would be 

 put out for public comment. 

 

X. ENROLLMENT/HOUSING-STUDENT LIFE COMMITTEE (Dixie Yann, Chair) 

 

Dixie Yann, Chair of the Enrollment/Housing-Student Life Committee, stated that 

that committee recently met (October 9, 2015) and that two newly elected BOG 

members, Kelly Humphreys (representing students) and G. H. Budd Sapp 

(representing faculty) were in attendance. 

 

She reported that Campus Visitation Day will now be called Maroon and White Day 

as indicated on the flyer that was provided as a handout.  She also said that in 

addition to the areas of enrollment, the Committee will also be focusing on retention 

efforts.   

 

Ms. Yann then asked Kaye Widney, Vice President for Student Services, to provide a 

brief update.  Ms. Widney reviewed the following report (on the pages that follow) 

which was also distributed to the Board: 

Page 14 of 59



Page 15 of 59



Page 16 of 59



Page 17 of 59



Page 18 of 59



Page 19 of 59



Fairmont State University Board of Governors 

Meeting Minutes 

October 22, 2015 - Cont’d 

XI. FINANCE COMMITTEE (Mark Pallotta and John Schirripa, Co- Chairs)

Mr. Pallotta, Co-Chair of the Finance Committee, reported that the Finance 

Committee met a few weeks ago (September 30, 2015) and discussed the Annual 

Audit.  He also stated that they have been planning for the anticipated budget 

reduction and that he hoped that they would have more updated information on the 

Audit at the next BOG Meeting. 

XII. STUDENT HOUSING COMMITTEE (Aaron Hawkins, Chair)

Aaron Hawkins, Chair of the Student Housing Committee, deferred comments until 

Executive Session due to issues related to advance construction planning and 

pursuant to §6-9A-4-2b(9) of the West Virginia Code. 

XIII. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (Mark Pallotta, Chair)

Chairman Pallotta stated there that the Executive Committee would be meeting the 

first of next month.  It was later determined that date would be November 5, 2015. 

XIV. POSSIBLE EXECUTIVE SESSION

Ron Tucker made a motion to go into Executive Session “Under the Authority of 

West Virginia Code §6-9A-4” to discuss property issues.   

Dixie Yann seconded.  The motion passed. 

Ron Tucker made a motion to rise from Executive Session.  Chris Courtney 

seconded.  The motion passed. 

There was no vote on any item discussed in Executive Session. 

XV. ADJOURNMENT 

Budd Sapp made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Dixie Yann seconded. The 

motion passed. 

____________________________________  FSU Board of Governors’ Chairman 

Mark Pallotta  Date 

____________________________________  FSU Board of Governors’ Secretary 

Ron Tucker Date 

Page 20 of 59



 

 

Tab 2 

Page 21 of 59



Fairmont State University 
Board of Governors 
Financial Report 

for the period ending August 31, 2015 
 

Unrestricted Central Fund: 
At the end of August, the Unrestricted Fund budget deficit condition improved by $26,500 over that 
reported at the end of July.  Correcting entries to salary and benefit budget adjustments in July and 
those to be offset in the September time period resulted in an increase of $17,064. A true budget 
increase of $1,450 resulted from the split‐funding of a position within the Auxiliary units.  Estimates for 
PEIA costs decreased by $44,968.  Assessment for Support Services increased by $5,895 as a result of 
wage and benefit adjustments within the community college.  Support Services Revenue increased by 
$5,921 due to wage and benefit adjustments within the university structure. 
 
Tuition and fee revenue is 48.83% of the budget estimate for the current year.  Student Activity Support 
Revenue is at 26.61% of the fiscal projection.  Total Operating Revenue calculates to 40.41% of that 
anticipated for the current year.  Non‐Operating Revenue is 18.19% of the total annual anticipated. 
Operating Expenses are at 18.53% of the budget estimate for the current year.  The YTD Actual condition 
at the end of July is $6,507,840 
 
Unrestricted Fund Manager Fund: 
During the month of August, the planned budget deficit condition for FY 2016 improved by $9,780.   This 
improvement is attributed to a decrease in the estimate for PEIA costs. 
 
At the end of August, the total revenue is 43.96% of that anticipated for the fiscal year.  Operating 
expenses are 6.89% of that planned for the fiscal year.  The YTD Actual condition reflects a surplus of 
revenue over expenses of $707,963. 
 
Auxiliary Fund: 
Modifications transferring budget from one expense category to another resulted in a zero effect on the 
bottom line of the financial statements for the August time period.  The Transfers to Reserve increased 
by $13,327 as a result of position funding shifts and PEIA updates. 
 
The Operating Revenue is 35.26% of that estimated for FY 2016.  Operating Expenses are 29.39% of that 
estimated for the year.  The YTD Actual condition at the end of August is $2,167,718. 
 
Restricted Fund: 
Existing grant additions during August include the following: 
  Teacher Education Partnership ‐ Monongalia Co Board of Education     $10,000 
  Teacher Education Partnership – Taylor Co Board of Education     $2,500 
  WVINBRE FRDA grant close     ($186.10) 
 
Restricted fund revenues are at 29.17% of that anticipated for FY 2016.  Non‐Operating Revenue (PELL 
Grant) calculates as 35.57% of the budget planned.  Operating Expenses are reflected at 29.41% of the 
annual estimate.  The YTD Actual condition at the end of August is $556,132. 
 
Following are the financial reports for the month of August 2015. 
 

Page 22 of 59



Approved Current YTD YTD Actual to Current

Budget Budget Actual Budget

OPERATING REVENUE Tuition and Fees 23,116,461 23,116,461 11,319,351 48.97

Student Activity Support Revenue 471,765 471,765 125,515 26.61

Faculty Services Revenue 1,272,439 1,272,439 0 0.00

Operating Costs Revenue 1,597,901 1,595,712 84,494 5.30

Support Services Revenue 2,035,390 2,037,433 0 0.00

Other Operating Revenues 225,293 225,293 4,969 2.21

Total: 28,719,248 28,719,102 11,534,329 40.16

OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 24,572,578 24,565,170 3,685,227 15.00

Benefits 5,923,148 5,946,932 931,931 15.67

Student financial aid-scholarships 2,613,428 2,613,428 1,538,332 58.86

Utilities 1,451,176 1,451,176 84,248 5.81

Supplies and Other Services 6,029,871 6,089,305 1,816,933 29.84

Equipment Expense 837,331 836,803 93,548 11.18

Fees retained by the Commission 185,560 185,560 42,968 23.16

Assessment for Faculty Services 987,218 987,218 0 0.00

Assessment for Support Services 256,737 258,360 0 0.00

Assessment for Student Activity Costs 349,764 349,764 123,000 35.17

Assessment for Operating Costs 100,134 100,134 789 0.79

Total: 43,306,945 43,383,851 8,316,976 19.17

OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) (14,587,698) (14,664,748) 3,217,353 (21.94)

NONOPERATING REVENUE State Appropriations 15,668,202 15,668,202 3,133,640 20.00

(EXPENSE) Investment Income 25,245 25,000 6,211 24.84

Loss/Gain in Disposal of Fixed Assets 0 25,245 1,499 5.94

Assessment for E&G Capital & Debt Service Costs (2,143,380) (2,143,380) (671,128) 31.31

Total: 13,550,067 13,575,067 2,470,222 18.20

TRANSFERS & OTHER Capital Expenditures (84,438) (79,489) (680) 0.86

Transfers for Debt Service (64,986) (64,775) 0 0.00

Transfers for Financial Aid Match (81,239) (81,239) 0 0.00

Indirect Cost Recoveries 1,740 825 439 53.18

Transfers - Other (37,150) (12,150) 112,544 (926.27)

Total: (266,073) (236,829) 112,302 (47.42)

BUDGET BALANCE (1,303,703) (1,326,510) 5,799,877

Add: Estimated Unfilled Position Savings: 1,000,000 641,414

ADJUSTED BUDGET BALANCE (303,703) (685,096)

* Add: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 10,199,025 9,462,879

Less: USE OF RESERVE 0 0

Equals: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 9,895,322 8,777,783

   Unrestricted Net Asset Balance is 21.81% of the current budget total operating expense.

*  Projected Unrestricted Net Assets - Beginning of Year is after adding back the projected OPEB liability at June 30, 2015 in the amount of $8,389,298

Fairmont State University

Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Current Unrestricted - Central E&G

As of August 31, 2015

FZRPR03 Funds%

10/6/2015 Page 23 of 59



Approved Current YTD YTD Actual to Current

Budget Budget Actual Budget

OPERATING REVENUE Tuition and Fees 1,839,169 1,839,169 866,085 47.09

Other Operating Revenues 143,252 143,252 5,341 3.73

Total: 1,982,421 1,982,421 871,427 43.96

OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 617,482 687,011 53,052 7.72

Benefits 63,007 68,187 5,143 7.54

Student financial aid-scholarships 16,436 32,110 13,712 42.70

Utilities 4,500 4,500 0 0.00

Supplies and Other Services 1,497,332 1,372,984 42,717 3.11

Equipment Expense 223,834 236,368 50,823 21.50

Total: 2,422,590 2,401,159 165,446 6.89

OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) (440,169) (418,738) 705,980 (168.60)

NONOPERATING REVENUE Gifts 1,000 1,750 0 0.00

(EXPENSE)

Total: 1,000 1,750 0 0.00

TRANSFERS & OTHER Capital Expenditures 0 0 (4,888)

Indirect Cost Recoveries 28,000 12,918 6,870 53.18

Transfers - Other 37,150 37,150 0 0.00

Total: 65,150 50,068 1,982 3.96

BUDGET BALANCE (374,019) (366,919) 707,963

Add: Estimated Unfilled Position Savings: 0 0

ADJUSTED BUDGET BALANCE (374,019) 0

Add: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 721,145 1,359,754

Less: USE OF RESERVE 0 0

** Equals: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 347,126 1,359,754

Fairmont State University

Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Current Unrestricted - Fund Manager

As of August 31, 2015

**   Unrestricted Net Asset Balance is 56.63% of the current budget total operating expense.

FZRPR03 Funds%

10/6/2015 Page 24 of 59



Approved Current YTD YTD Actual to Current

Budget Budget Actual Budget

OPERATING REVENUE Auxiliary Enterprise Revenue 7,666,155 7,634,987 3,020,820 39.57

Auxiliary Fees & Debt Service Support Revenue 5,057,393 5,057,393 1,520,634 30.07

Other Operating Revenues 235,339 235,339 16,275 6.92

Total: 12,958,887 12,927,719 4,557,729 35.26

OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 2,622,579 2,667,510 376,931 14.13

Benefits 584,389 601,962 83,077 13.80

Student financial aid-scholarships 675,802 675,802 175,694 26.00

Utilities 883,268 883,268 47,073 5.33

Supplies and Other Services 3,258,715 3,214,937 1,639,401 50.99

Equipment Expense 76,945 74,885 64,009 85.48

Total: 8,101,698 8,118,364 2,386,184 29.39

OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) 4,857,189 4,809,355 2,171,546 45.15

NONOPERATING REVENUE Gifts 0 2,773 2,773 100.00

(EXPENSE) Interest on capital asset related debt (91,042) (91,042) (6,801) 7.47

Total: (91,042) (88,269) (4,028) 4.56

TRANSFERS & OTHER Capital Expenditures (132,300) (92,844) 200 (0.22)

Transfers for Debt Service (3,160,221) (3,158,922) 0 0.00

Transfers for Financial Aid Match (3,425) (3,425) 0 0.00

Transfers - Other (22,963) (25,000) 0 0.00

Total: (3,318,909) (3,280,191) 200 (0.01)

BUDGET BALANCE - Projected Transfer to Reserves 1,447,239 1,440,895 2,167,718

* Add: PROJECTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 11,256,910 8,327,688

Equals: PROJECTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 12,704,149 9,768,583

      20 year plan to support each auxiliary enterprise capital repair/replacement need.

Auxiliary

Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Board of Governors

*  Projected Net Assets - Beginning of Year is after adding back the projected OPEB liability at June 30, 2015 in the amount of $995,589

*   Auxiliary Net Assets are required to support future repair and replacement costs.  Planning activities are in progress to document a  

As of August 31, 2015

FZRPR03 Funds%

10/6/2015
Page 25 of 59



Approved Current YTD YTD Actual to Current

Budget Budget Actual Budget

OPERATING REVENUE Federal Grants and Contracts 22,865,521 22,865,335 7,552,610 33.03

State/Local Grants and Contracts 6,943,093 6,943,093 991,162 14.28

Private Grants and Contracts 1,743,217 1,755,717 664,630 37.86

Other Operating Revenue 27 27 50 183.35

Total: 31,551,858 31,564,172 9,208,452 29.17

OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 389,818 410,442 163,302 39.79

Benefits 51,382 54,151 22,000 40.63

Student financial aid - scholarships 40,220,000 40,220,000 11,839,116 29.44

Utilities 0 0 0 0.00

Supplies and Other Services 774,799 734,661 163,888 22.31

Equipment Expense 41,969 71,028 13,218 18.61

Total: 41,477,968 41,490,282 12,201,524 29.41

OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) (9,926,109) (9,926,109) (2,993,072) 30.15

NONOPERATING REVENUE Federal Pell Grant Revenues 10,000,000 10,000,000 3,556,557 35.57

(EXPENSE) Gifts 0 0 0 0.00

Investment Income 0 0 0

Total: 10,000,000 10,000,000 3,556,557 35.57

TRANSFERS & OTHER Capital Expenditures (2,950) (2,950) 0 0.00

Transfers for Fin Aid Match 84,664 84,664 (44) -0.05

Indirect Cost Recoveries (13,743) (13,743) (7,309) 53.18

Transfers - Other 0 0.00

Total: 67,971 67,971 (7,352) -10.82

BUDGET BALANCE 141,862 141,862 556,132

* Add:  RESTRICTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 584,982 584,982

** Equals: PROJECTED RESTRICTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 726,843 726,843

FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY

Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Current Restricted

As of August 31, 2015

FZRPR03 Funds Restricted

9/16/2015

Page 26 of 59



Fairmont State University 
Board of Governors 
Financial Report 

for the period ending September 30, 2015 
 

Unrestricted Central Fund: 
At the end of September, the Unrestricted Fund budget deficit condition improved by $2,962 over that 
reported at the end of August.  Correcting entries to salary and benefit budget adjustments completed 
in August resulted in a budget savings of $2,371.  A budget savings of $1,103 also resulted from the split‐
funding of a position within the Auxiliary units. Movement of student labor cost to the Title III grant 
resulted in a decrease of $8,637 to salaries and benefit budgets. The estimate for PEIA costs shows a net 
increase of $2,556.  Support Services Revenue decreased by $6,594 as a result of PEIA cost updates. 
 
Tuition and fee revenue is 49.10% of the budget estimate for the current year.  Student Activity Support 
Revenue is at 41.11% of the fiscal projection.  Total Operating Revenue calculates to 42.79% of that 
anticipated for the current year.  Non‐Operating Revenue is 17.36% of the total annual anticipated. At 
the end of the first quarter, Operating Expenses are at 26.39% of the budget estimate for the current 
year.  The YTD Actual condition at the end of September is $3,324,183. 
 
Unrestricted Fund Manager Fund: 
During the month of September, the planned budget deficit condition for FY 2016 remained at 
($366,919).  Budget modifications during this time period were from one expense category to another 
and resulted in no change to the bottom line of the financial statement. 
 
At the end of the first quarter, the total revenue is 46.00% of that anticipated for the fiscal year.  
Operating expenses are 11.60% of that planned for the fiscal year.  The YTD Actual condition reflects a 
surplus of revenue over expenses of $642,521. 
 
Auxiliary Fund: 
Modifications transferring budget from one expense category to another resulted in a zero effect on the 
bottom line of the financial statements for the September time period.  Transfers to Reserves decreased 
by $3,983 as a result of position funding shifts and PEIA cost updates. 
 
The Operating Revenue is 45.24% of that estimated for FY 2016.  Operating Expenses are 43.67% of that 
estimated for the year.  The YTD Actual condition at the end of September is $2,291,152. 
 
Restricted Fund: 
Existing Grant Budgets  415,816.00  
    Title III Year 4 Budget  364,816.00  
    Educational Resource Center (ERC) Year 2 budget adj   (10,000.00)  
    WVINBRE FY 2016 Award    30,000.00  
    Albert Yanni Award for Governor's Honor Academy    30,000.00  
    Canada Outreach      1,000.00  
    WV Symphony      6,206.00  
    Tobacco Free Falcons       4,000.00  
    Energy Makers Middle School Program from Sprout Fund    15,000.00  
 
     

Page 27 of 59



Restricted revenues are 38.56% of the projection for the current fiscal year.  Non‐operating revenue 
(Pell Grant) is at 36.49% of that budgeted for the year.  At the end of the first quarter, Operating 
Expenses are 33.54% of the budget projection for the year.  The YTD Actual condition at the end of 
September is $1,946,906.       
 
Following are the financial reports for the month of September 2015. 

Page 28 of 59



Approved Current YTD YTD Actual to Current

Budget Budget Actual Budget

OPERATING REVENUE Tuition and Fees 23,116,461 23,116,461 11,349,672 49.10

Student Activity Support Revenue 471,765 471,765 193,945 41.11

Faculty Services Revenue 1,272,439 1,272,439 0 0.00

Operating Costs Revenue 1,597,901 1,595,712 390,956 24.50

Support Services Revenue 2,035,390 2,030,839 336,528 16.57

Other Operating Revenues 225,293 321,851 55,667 17.30

Total: 28,719,248 28,809,066 12,326,768 42.79

OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 24,572,578 24,574,936 5,646,123 22.98

Benefits 5,923,148 5,959,807 1,445,257 24.25

Student financial aid-scholarships 2,613,428 2,613,428 1,569,470 60.05

Utilities 1,451,176 1,451,176 228,269 15.73

Supplies and Other Services 6,029,871 6,253,666 2,252,585 36.02

Equipment Expense 837,331 736,803 104,310 14.16

Fees retained by the Commission 185,560 185,560 42,968 23.16

Assessment for Faculty Services 987,218 987,218 0 0.00

Assessment for Support Services 256,737 258,360 32,362 12.53

Assessment for Student Activity Costs 349,764 349,764 148,289 42.40

Assessment for Operating Costs 100,134 100,134 3,300 3.30

Total: 43,306,945 43,470,852 11,472,933 26.39

OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) (14,587,698) (14,661,786) 853,835 (5.82)

NONOPERATING REVENUE State Appropriations 15,668,202 15,668,202 3,133,640 20.00

(EXPENSE) Gifts 0 25,000 6,211 24.84

Investment Income 25,245 25,245 3,415 13.53

Assessment for E&G Capital & Debt Service Costs (2,143,380) (2,143,380) (786,076) 36.67

Total: 13,550,067 13,575,067 2,357,191 17.36

TRANSFERS & OTHER Capital Expenditures (84,438) (79,489) 0 0.00

Transfers for Debt Service (64,986) (64,775) 0 0.00

Transfers for Financial Aid Match (81,239) (81,239) 0 0.00

Indirect Cost Recoveries 1,740 825 614 74.48

Transfers - Other (37,150) (12,150) 112,543 (926.27)

Total: (266,073) (236,829) 113,158 (47.78)

BUDGET BALANCE (1,303,703) (1,323,548) 3,324,183

Add: Estimated Unfilled Position Savings: 1,000,000 1,186,766

ADJUSTED BUDGET BALANCE (303,703) (136,782)

* Add: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 10,199,025 9,462,879

Less: USE OF RESERVE 0 0

Equals: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 9,895,322 9,326,097

   Unrestricted Net Asset Balance is 21.77% of the current budget total operating expense.

*  Projected Unrestricted Net Assets - Beginning of Year is after adding back the projected OPEB liability at June 30, 2015 in the amount of $8,389,298

Fairmont State University

Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Current Unrestricted - Central E&G

As of September 30, 2015

FZRPR03 Funds%

10/12/2015 Page 29 of 59



Approved Current YTD YTD Actual to Current

Budget Budget Actual Budget

OPERATING REVENUE Tuition and Fees 1,839,169 1,839,169 873,463 47.49

Other Operating Revenues 143,252 143,252 38,501 26.88

Total: 1,982,421 1,982,421 911,965 46.00

OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 617,482 713,311 101,669 14.25

Benefits 63,007 70,809 12,092 17.08

Student financial aid-scholarships 16,436 32,110 13,840 43.10

Utilities 4,500 4,500 604 13.42

Supplies and Other Services 1,497,332 1,352,934 84,418 6.24

Equipment Expense 223,834 227,496 65,969 29.00

Total: 2,422,590 2,401,159 278,591 11.60

OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) (440,169) (418,738) 633,374 (151.26)

NONOPERATING REVENUE Gifts 1,000 1,750 0 0.00

(EXPENSE)

Total: 1,000 1,750 0 0.00

TRANSFERS & OTHER Capital Expenditures 0 0 (474)

Indirect Cost Recoveries 28,000 12,918 9,622 74.48

Transfers - Other 37,150 37,150 0 0.00

Total: 65,150 50,068 9,148 18.27

BUDGET BALANCE (374,019) (366,919) 642,521

Add: Estimated Unfilled Position Savings: 0 1,914

ADJUSTED BUDGET BALANCE (374,019) 1,914

Add: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 721,145 1,359,754

Less: USE OF RESERVE 0 0

** Equals: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 347,126 1,361,668

Fairmont State University

Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Current Unrestricted - Fund Manager

As of September 30, 2015

**   Unrestricted Net Asset Balance is 56.63% of the current budget total operating expense.

FZRPR03 Funds%

10/12/2015 Page 30 of 59



Approved Current YTD YTD Actual to Current

Budget Budget Actual Budget

OPERATING REVENUE Auxiliary Enterprise Revenue 7,666,155 7,638,314 3,292,455 43.10

Auxiliary Fees & Debt Service Support Revenue 5,057,393 5,057,393 2,512,620 49.68

Other Operating Revenues 235,339 235,339 44,929 19.09

Total: 12,958,887 12,931,046 5,850,004 45.24

OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 2,622,579 2,685,894 608,795 22.67

Benefits 584,389 604,197 124,157 20.55

Student financial aid-scholarships 675,802 675,802 199,809 29.57

Utilities 883,268 883,268 115,825 13.11

Supplies and Other Services 3,258,715 3,201,628 2,424,420 75.72

Equipment Expense 76,945 74,885 75,129 100.33

Total: 8,101,698 8,125,674 3,548,135 43.67

OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) 4,857,189 4,805,372 2,301,869 47.90

NONOPERATING REVENUE Gifts 0 2,773 2,773 100.00

(EXPENSE) Interest on capital asset related debt (91,042) (91,042) (6,801) 7.47

Total: (91,042) (88,269) (4,028) 4.56

TRANSFERS & OTHER Capital Expenditures (132,300) (92,844) (6,689) 7.20

Transfers for Debt Service (3,160,221) (3,158,922) 0 0.00

Transfers for Financial Aid Match (3,425) (3,425) 0 0.00

Transfers - Other (22,963) (25,000) 0 0.00

Total: (3,318,909) (3,280,191) (6,689) 0.20

BUDGET BALANCE - Projected Transfer to Reserves 1,447,239 1,436,912 2,291,152

* Add: PROJECTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 11,256,910 8,327,688

Equals: PROJECTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 12,704,149 9,764,600

      20 year plan to support each auxiliary enterprise capital repair/replacement need.

Auxiliary

Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Board of Governors

*  Projected Net Assets - Beginning of Year is after adding back the projected OPEB liability at June 30, 2015 in the amount of $995,589

*   Auxiliary Net Assets are required to support future repair and replacement costs.  Planning activities are in progress to document a  

As of September 30, 2015

FZRPR03 Funds%

10/12/2015
Page 31 of 59



Approved Current YTD YTD Actual to Current

Budget Budget Actual Budget

OPERATING REVENUE Federal Grants and Contracts 22,865,521 23,250,151 9,185,052 39.51

State/Local Grants and Contracts 6,922,054 6,963,260 2,402,260 34.50

Private Grants and Contracts 1,850,217 1,877,717 785,518 41.83

Other Operating Revenue 27 27 50 183.35

Total: 31,637,820 32,091,156 12,372,880 38.56

OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 389,818 510,758 204,964 40.13

Benefits 51,382 83,686 29,107 34.78

Student financial aid - scholarships 40,220,000 40,220,000 13,546,031 33.68

Utilities 0 0 0 0.00

Supplies and Other Services 774,799 1,039,527 237,941 22.89

Equipment Expense 41,969 76,023 46,515 61.18

Total: 41,477,968 41,929,995 14,064,559 33.54

OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) (9,840,148) (9,838,839) (1,691,679) 17.19

NONOPERATING REVENUE Federal Pell Grant Revenues 10,000,000 10,000,000 3,648,864 36.49

(EXPENSE) Gifts 0 0 0 0.00

Investment Income 0 0 0

Total: 10,000,000 10,000,000 3,648,864 36.49

TRANSFERS & OTHER Capital Expenditures (2,950) (2,950) 0 0.00

Transfers for Fin Aid Match 84,664 84,664 (44) -0.05

Indirect Cost Recoveries (13,743) (15,051) (10,236) 68.01

Transfers - Other 0 0 0.00

Total: 67,971 66,663 (10,279) -15.42

BUDGET BALANCE 227,823 227,823 1,946,906

* Add:  RESTRICTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 584,982 584,982

** Equals: PROJECTED RESTRICTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 812,805 812,805

FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY

Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Current Restricted

As of September 30, 2015

FZRPR03 Funds Restricted

11/16/2015

Page 32 of 59



Fairmont State University 
Board of Governors 
Financial Report 

for the period ending October 31, 2015 

Unrestricted Central Fund: 
At the end of October, the Unrestricted Fund budget deficit condition increased by $16,987 over that 
reported at the end of September.  Labor estimates decreased by $11,615 with the shifting of support 
for positions to the Auxiliary funds. Labor and operating expense adjustments to be offset in November 
amounted to $4,982.  PEIA cost estimates increased by $30,224.  Support Services Revenue increased by 
$6,588 due to the PEIA cost estimate increase. 

Tuition and fee revenue is 48.98% of the budget estimate for the current year.  Student Activity Support 
Revenue is at 44.98% of the fiscal projection.  Total Operating Revenue calculates to 43.77% of that 
anticipated for the current year.  Non‐Operating Revenue is 41.69% of the total annual anticipated. At 
the end of October, Operating Expenses are at 33.66% of the budget estimate for the current year.  The 
YTD Actual condition at the end of October is $3,717,850. 

Unrestricted Fund Manager Fund: 
During the month of October, the planned budget deficit condition for FY 2016 is ($366,765), an 
improvement of $154 over the prior month.  This improvement resulted from the net change of 
modifications to salary and benefit budget assigned to two full‐time positions.  Other budget 
modifications during this time period affected revenue and expense budget lines and resulted in no 
change to the bottom line of the financial statements. 

At the end of the period, the total revenue is 49.96% of that anticipated for the fiscal year.  Operating 
expenses are 19.39% of that planned for the fiscal year.  The YTD Actual condition reflects a surplus of 
revenue over expenses of $519,438. 

Auxiliary Fund: 
The Auxiliary Fund budgeted transfer to reserve increased by $7,099 from $1,436,912 to $1,444,011.  
This increase resulted from the posting of the BLB settlement check for $8,327 and a small decrease to 
labor cost estimates. 

The Operating Revenue is 45.28% of that estimated for FY 2016.  Operating Expenses are 56.98% of that 
estimated for the year.  The YTD Actual condition at the end of October is ($381,667). 

Restricted Fund: 
Existing grant additions for October were comprised of the following: 

Educational Resource Center (ERC) Year 3 budget  $295,165.80 
TEP (Teacher Education Partnership) Fund  $35,000 

Restricted revenues have reached 41.46% of the total projected for the fiscal year.  Non‐Operating 
Revenue (Pell Grant) is at 36.87% of the budget for FY 2016.  Operating Expenses are 41.07% of the 
annual budget projection. The YTD Actual at the end of October is ($216,072). 

Following are the financial reports for the month of October 2015. 

Page 33 of 59



Approved Current YTD YTD Actual to Current

Budget Budget Actual Budget

OPERATING REVENUE Tuition and Fees 23,116,461 23,116,461 11,322,618 48.98

Student Activity Support Revenue 471,765 471,765 212,201 44.98

Faculty Services Revenue 1,272,439 1,272,439 16,198 1.27

Operating Costs Revenue 1,597,901 1,595,712 537,142 33.66

Support Services Revenue 2,035,390 2,037,093 492,482 24.18

Other Operating Revenues 225,293 321,851 30,452 9.46

Total: 28,719,248 28,815,320 12,611,093 43.77

OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 24,572,578 24,564,589 7,598,092 30.93

Benefits 5,923,148 5,988,969 1,904,961 31.81

Student financial aid-scholarships 2,613,428 2,613,428 1,572,392 60.17

Utilities 1,451,176 1,451,176 367,154 25.30

Supplies and Other Services 6,029,871 6,261,092 2,787,525 44.52

Equipment Expense 837,331 736,803 144,060 19.55

Fees retained by the Commission 185,560 185,560 42,968 23.16

Assessment for Faculty Services 987,218 987,218 7,603 0.77

Assessment for Support Services 256,737 258,360 49,654 19.22

Assessment for Student Activity Costs 349,764 349,764 162,181 46.37

Assessment for Operating Costs 100,134 100,134 5,309 5.30

Total: 43,306,945 43,497,093 14,641,898 33.66

OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) (14,587,698) (14,681,773) (2,030,805) 13.83

NONOPERATING REVENUE State Appropriations 15,668,202 15,668,202 6,580,644 42.00

(EXPENSE) Gifts 0 28,000 9,211 32.90

Investment Income 25,245 25,245 10,627 42.10

Assessment for E&G Capital & Debt Service Costs (2,143,380) (2,143,380) (939,168) 43.82

Total: 13,550,067 13,578,067 5,661,314 41.69

TRANSFERS & OTHER Capital Expenditures (84,438) (79,489) 6,405 (8.06)

Transfers for Debt Service (64,986) (64,775) (32,368) 49.97

Transfers for Financial Aid Match (81,239) (81,239) 0 0.00

Indirect Cost Recoveries 1,740 825 761 92.25

Transfers - Other (37,150) (12,150) 112,543 (926.27)

Total: (266,073) (236,829) 87,341 (36.88)

BUDGET BALANCE (1,303,703) (1,340,534) 3,717,850

Add: Estimated Unfilled Position Savings: 1,000,000 1,298,225

ADJUSTED BUDGET BALANCE (303,703) (42,309)

* Add: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 10,199,025 9,462,879

Less: USE OF RESERVE 0 0

Equals: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 9,895,322 9,420,570

 Unrestricted Net Asset Balance is 21.76% of the current budget total operating expense.

* Projected Unrestricted Net Assets - Beginning of Year is after adding back the projected OPEB liability at June 30, 2015 in the amount of $8,389,298

Fairmont State University

Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Current Unrestricted - Central E&G

As of October 31, 2015

FZRPR03 Funds%

11/13/2015 Page 34 of 59



Approved Current YTD YTD Actual to Current

Budget Budget Actual Budget

OPERATING REVENUE Tuition and Fees 1,839,169 1,789,169 914,928 51.14

Other Operating Revenues 143,252 133,252 45,541 34.18

Total: 1,982,421 1,922,421 960,469 49.96

OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 617,482 712,571 162,779 22.84

Benefits 63,007 71,395 19,943 27.93

Student financial aid-scholarships 16,436 32,110 15,841 49.33

Utilities 4,500 4,500 906 20.14

Supplies and Other Services 1,497,332 1,292,934 168,289 13.02

Equipment Expense 223,834 227,496 86,199 37.89

Total: 2,422,590 2,341,005 453,957 19.39

OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) (440,169) (418,584) 506,511 (121.01)

NONOPERATING REVENUE Gifts 1,000 1,750 1,010 57.71

(EXPENSE)

Total: 1,000 1,750 1,010 57.71

TRANSFERS & OTHER Indirect Cost Recoveries 28,000 12,918 11,917 92.25

Transfers - Other 37,150 37,150 0 0.00

Total: 65,150 50,068 11,917 23.80

BUDGET BALANCE (374,019) (366,765) 519,438

Add: Estimated Unfilled Position Savings: 0 1,582

ADJUSTED BUDGET BALANCE (374,019) 1,582

Add: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 721,145 1,359,754

Less: USE OF RESERVE 0 0

** Equals: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 347,126 1,361,336

Fairmont State University

Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Current Unrestricted - Fund Manager

As of October 31, 2015

**   Unrestricted Net Asset Balance is 58.08% of the current budget total operating expense.

FZRPR03 Funds%

11/13/2015 Page 35 of 59



Approved Current YTD YTD Actual to Current

Budget Budget Actual Budget

OPERATING REVENUE Auxiliary Enterprise Revenue 7,666,155 7,649,891 3,402,634 44.48

Auxiliary Fees & Debt Service Support Revenue 5,057,393 5,057,393 2,359,777 46.66

Other Operating Revenues 235,339 243,666 102,085 41.90

Total: 12,958,887 12,950,950 5,864,495 45.28

OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 2,622,579 2,696,559 831,566 30.84

Benefits 584,389 606,337 164,910 27.20

Student financial aid-scholarships 675,802 675,802 207,424 30.69

Utilities 883,268 883,268 192,191 21.76

Supplies and Other Services 3,258,715 3,201,628 3,161,159 98.74

Equipment Expense 76,945 74,885 79,926 106.73

Total: 8,101,698 8,138,479 4,637,178 56.98

OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) 4,857,189 4,812,471 1,227,318 25.50

NONOPERATING REVENUE Gifts 0 2,773 2,773 100.00

(EXPENSE) Interest on capital asset related debt (91,042) (91,042) (17,003) 18.68

Total: (91,042) (88,269) (14,230) 16.12

TRANSFERS & OTHER Capital Expenditures (132,300) (92,844) (16,271) 17.52

Transfers for Debt Service (3,160,221) (3,158,922) (1,578,485) 49.97

Transfers for Financial Aid Match (3,425) (3,425) 0 0.00

Transfers - Other (22,963) (25,000) 0 0.00

Total: (3,318,909) (3,280,191) (1,594,755) 48.62

BUDGET BALANCE - Projected Transfer to Reserves 1,447,239 1,444,011 (381,667)

* Add: PROJECTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 11,256,910 8,327,688

Equals: PROJECTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 12,704,149 9,771,699

      20 year plan to support each auxiliary enterprise capital repair/replacement need.

Auxiliary

Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Board of Governors

*  Projected Net Assets - Beginning of Year is after adding back the projected OPEB liability at June 30, 2015 in the amount of $995,589

*   Auxiliary Net Assets are required to support future repair and replacement costs.  Planning activities are in progress to document a  

As of October 31, 2015

FZRPR03 Funds%

11/13/2015
Page 36 of 59



Approved Current YTD YTD Actual to Current

Budget Budget Actual Budget

OPERATING REVENUE Federal Grants and Contracts 22,865,521 23,545,317 9,328,865 39.62

State/Local Grants and Contracts 6,922,054 6,963,260 3,298,667 47.37

Private Grants and Contracts 1,850,217 1,912,717 814,066 42.56

Other Operating Revenue 27 27 50 183.35

Total: 31,637,820 32,421,321 13,441,648 41.46

OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 389,818 636,457 262,278 41.21

Benefits 51,382 123,663 35,716 28.88

Student financial aid - scholarships 40,220,000 40,220,000 16,671,563 41.45

Utilities 0 0 0 0.00

Supplies and Other Services 774,799 1,097,972 263,574 24.01

Equipment Expense 41,969 123,404 98,136 79.52

Total: 41,477,968 42,201,497 17,331,266 41.07

OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) (9,840,148) (9,780,175) (3,889,618) 39.77

NONOPERATING REVENUE Federal Pell Grant Revenues 10,000,000 10,000,000 3,686,659 36.87

(EXPENSE) Gifts 0 0 0 0.00

Investment Income 0 0 0

Total: 10,000,000 10,000,000 3,686,659 36.87

TRANSFERS & OTHER Capital Expenditures (2,950) (25,562) 0 0.00

Transfers for Fin Aid Match 84,664 84,664 (44) -0.05

Indirect Cost Recoveries (13,743) (51,104) (13,069) 25.57

Transfers - Other 0 0 0.00

Total: 67,971 7,999 (13,112) -163.94

BUDGET BALANCE 227,823 227,823 (216,072)

* Add:  RESTRICTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 584,982 584,982

** Equals: PROJECTED RESTRICTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 812,805 812,805

FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY

Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Current Restricted

As of October 31, 2015

FZRPR03 Funds Restricted

11/16/2015

Page 37 of 59



Tab 3 

Page 38 of 59



1 
 

Fairmont State University 

Board of Governors 

December 17, 2015 
 

Item:    The 2015 Update and Report for the Institutional Compact 

 

Committee:   Academic Affairs/Admissions Committee  

 

Recommended Resolution: Resolved, that the Fairmont State University Board of Governors 

approve the 2015 Update and Report for the Institutional Compact submitted to 

the Higher Education Policy Commission (HEPC) on November 1, 2015, 

pending approval of the institutional Board of Governors.   

 

Action:    Approval 

 

Staff Member:   Dr. Tim Oxley 

 

Background: Fairmont State University is required by the HEPC to submit 2015 updates on 

Comprehensive Plan Strategies and initiatives for the Institutional Compact 

with the HEPC’s master plan, Leading the Way: Access. Success. Impact, which covers 

a five-year period from 2012-13 through 2017-18. Updates were submitted to 

HEPC’s Division of Policy and Planning pending approval of the Board of 

Governors.    

 

The attached document provides identification of Plans and Strategies 

Fairmont State University will pursue in good faith as a partner to the 

Compact process.  For a description of progress made thus far on the Plans 

and Strategies, the following link provides access to the 2015 Institutional 

Compact Update - a detailed narrative of activities and progress.   

 

For readability, the attached document does not reflect the format as 

submitted to HEPC which was a single fillable form for each plan or strategy.  

The 2015 Institutional Compact Update provides the verbatim narrative as it 

was submitted to HEPC.   

 

The Board of Governors approved at its October 22nd meeting the 2018 

Institutional Targets and Metrics recommended by HEPC.  

 

 

https://www.fairmontstate.edu/aboutfsu/sites/default/files/2015-institutional-compact-update.pdf 

 

Page 39 of 59

https://www.fairmontstate.edu/aboutfsu/sites/default/files/2015-institutional-compact-update.pdf


2 
 

FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY COMPACT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATES 

COMPACT Comprehensive Plan Strategies 

Comprehensive Plan Strategy Activity Description 

Academic Quality Plan 

Strategy A 
Activity 1 – Program Assessment 
Process and Procedures (Critical 
Friends Group) 

This strategy focuses on the design and delivery of a program 
assessment structure, process and annual time-line with 
benchmarks and key dates. These elements are designed to 
ensure ongoing assessment of, and for, student learning, 
focusing on evidence that programs use evidence to support 
program design and delivery, and that programs are effective 
for students. The program assessment focus on key 
components relative to ensuring that graduates are 
knowledgeable and competent in their chosen disciplines, and 
also are proficient in General Studies Attributes adopted by 
Fairmont State University (parallel to the HEPC General 
Education skills). 

Strategy B 

Activity 1 – Professional 
Development in strengthening 
academic quality 

This strategy will build on the foundational work of the Critical 
Friends Group serving as a structure for the ongoing work of 
continuous improvement in assessment of learning at Fairmont 
State University. This strategy to strengthen academic quality 
will focus in particular on: (1) course level teaching, learning 
and assessment; and (2) linking and mapping course level 
activity more coherently with program level learning goals and 
outcomes. Implementation of this activity will include 
collaboration with the Faculty Development Committee of the 
FSU Faculty Senate. The Faculty Development Committee 
provides key campus leadership to efforts to support faculty in 
engaging in best practices in pedagogy. 

Activity 2 – Continued 
implementation and strengthening of 
program assessment structure and 
process for review 

Career Pathways Plan Strategy A 
Activity 1 – “Programs of Distinction” 
Initiative Reintroduction 

This strategy will focus on the review, redesign (as needed) 
and implementation of Fairmont State University’s “Programs 
of Distinction” initiative. This initiative has been used in the 
past as a way to support and highlight leading academic 
programs as emblematic of the University’s programs.  
Programs of Distinction provide evidence of exemplary 
academic structures and elements, and are identified as 
establishing high standards for program rigor, and academic 
and professional achievement. Such programs identified in the 
past were those that served to differentiate the University in 
our regional higher education market and among peer and 

Page 40 of 59



3 
 

competitor universities. Two programs at Fairmont State 
University have carried that distinction previously:  
1) Bachelor of Science in Accounting; and 2) Bachelor of 
Science in Occupational Safety.  
In recent years the initiative has been less visible and 
strategically promoted. With a renewed emphasis on 
supporting career pathways, the initiative has significant and 
immediate potential as a promising practice to support career 
and professional pathways for students. 

Critical Regional Issues Plan Strategy A 
Activity 1 – Center Directors 
Network 

Programming and initiatives to promote responsible citizenship 
and the common good have been central to the University’s 
mission. The University attempts to ensure that that 
commitment pervades how it educates students and how it 
engages in the world. The University’s academic programs are 
built on intellectual and professional investments in educating 
people who have the knowledge, skills and habits of mind 
necessary for responsible, participatory citizenship. This is true 
for citizenship in communities as they exist, and with how they 
are changing in a changing world.  
As a core element of its continued commitment to engagement 
and being a resource in critical regional issues, the University 
will intensify its efforts to take advantage of the "center" 
concept, with the models above as starting points for 
organizing and sustaining this work. These strategic efforts will 
include interfaces with academic programming, engagement 
activities by faculty, students and professional staff, and with 
relevant entities outside the University. The effort will also 
include initiatives to identify resources to enhance, and where 
appropriate the work and impact of the centers. 

Collaborative Access Plan Strategy A Activity 1 – CCRR work 

As a result of the preliminary analyses and planning, the 
Campus Collaborative for Recruitment and Retention proposed 
a set of initial action steps and strategies to support the efforts 
in recruitment, enrollment and retention. The full range of 
activities address and support multiple touch points in the 
student experience continuum.  
The strategy focuses on steps related to research design, data 
collection and analysis that can support efforts at continuous 
improvement in the student services and academic touch 
points that support students. The elements identified will serve 
to improve the data generated in these activities and practices, 
create better coherency and consistency in data collection 

Page 41 of 59



4 
 

 

strategies, and thus improve the practices themselves. This 
strategy at its full implementation will inform most if not all of 
the touch point components of a student's recruitment, 
admission, orientation, initial registration, and transition into 
college. 
 

Financial Aid Plan Strategy A 
Activity 1 – Increasing amount and 
number of scholarships available to 
students 

Adequate financial aid for students is recognized as a key 
component in allowing students to select an institution based 
upon academic fit and to be successful at their chosen 
schools.  Fairmont State University seeks to develop a plan 
that can be articulated in a manner that allows all areas of 
campus to work together to insure that to the extent possible, 
qualified students are able to attend FSU.  Financial aid 
packaging policies need to triangulate the awarding of 
scholarships, grants, loans and employment opportunities for 
both potential and returning students in an effort to maximize 
success, regardless of economic background.   
Early awareness is very beneficial in allowing students and 
families the ability to make informed decisions about college 
options.  Fairmont State University will work to develop 
partnerships with high schools and junior high schools in order 
to ensure that students have a level of awareness about the 
costs of attending higher education and information about the 
various forms of assistance available to them.  Outreach to 
local civic and social organizations will be done in order to talk 
with adults who might be interested in beginning/returning 
pursuit of degree or who have children interested in attending. 
Clear communications with potential and returning students 
about financial aid policies and procedures is essential in 
establishing expectations of recipients with hopes of 
maintaining eligibility impacting retention.  

Page 42 of 59



5 
 

FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY COMPACT STRATEGIES UPDATES 

COMPACT Strategies 

 

Strategy Activity Description Person(s) Responsible 

Degrees Awarded 

Activity 1 
STEM Marketing and Recruiting 
Team 

In the past the majority of efforts at marketing, recruiting and 
admission of new students in STEM fields have occurred at the 
program and college/school levels. There is a limited degree of 
coordination across these entities, and that happens through 
the Office of Admissions and Recruitment for undergraduate 
programs, and the Graduate Council and Office of Graduate 
Studies for graduate programs. These offices work with 
University Communications on marketing and recruiting 
strategies.  
In addition to the above structures, once students are admitted, 
STEM programming and support tends to be unit-specific, 
without a coherent, campus-wide plan for how to support 
STEM curricular and extracurricular programming. There are 
multiple examples of excellent programming, but they are often 
times isolated from each other and lack institutional energy and 
support that can be achieved if they share a common presence 
and purpose.  
The activities that follow will describe plans to initiate cross-
programmatic efforts to create better institutional coherency 
and strategy to support program level recruiting, admission, 
and programming in STEM. 

Activity 2 
Focus of First Year Experience and 
Passport Programs on STEM fields 

Developmental Education 

Activity 1 
Accelerated Learning Program in 
English 

Through an associated grant From the HEPC, FSU was able to 
host campus-based professional development to support 
faculty design and development of new curricula in both the 
“Pathways” plan for developmental Mathematics and the 
“Accelerated Learning” plan for developmental English.  
The University initiated implementation of these plans in 2013-
14 with redesigned coursework and through redesigned 
supporting documentation and procedures. Student services 
and academic programming support now begin with the 
admissions process and continue through the completion of 
matriculation related to the specific courses. Students are 
supported through orientation, first-term registration, and 

Activity 2 Mathematics Pathways  

Page 43 of 59



6 
 

subsequent matriculation. Professionals support in this process 
includes admissions counselors, orientation staff and 
counselors, and Advising Center and faculty advisors.  
Now that implementation is ongoing, academic leadership and 
associated faculty and staff will map out a process for 
engaging in program assessment to track the success of the 
models at the institutional (program) level. While assessment 
has been ongoing at the course level, and within academic 
programs, the University is now at a point where it can begin to 
assess the impact of the two plans relative to institution-wide 
enrollment, retention and graduation data. 

Enrollment 

Activity 1 Appreciative Advising  

FSU’s Campus Collaborative for Recruitment and Retention 
(CCRR) focused on the continuum of student “touch points” 
from the first inquiry by a high school student who could 
potentially come to FSU through declaration of a major as an 
enrolled student. The committee work has involved over fifty 
faculty and staff from units across Student Services and 
Academic Affairs.  
A major design component that emerged from the CCRR work 
revolved around structuring a “First-Year Experience” for 
Fairmont State Students. This design work included several 
major components including the review and implementation of 
Appreciative Advising, and the development of an 
“Ambassador” program in colleges and schools to create a 
cadre of current students to support recruitment and retention 
efforts.  (Multiple initiatives and strategies reviewed and 
endorsed by CCRR are cited across the LTW Compact 
strategies and plans.) Students who represent under-served or 
under-represented groups are specifically identified as 
warranted in the group’s membership (e.g. Math and Science 
Education majors, male Elementary Education majors, first 
generation college students, etc.). Ambassadors interact with: 
prospective students during individual family visits; group major 
Exploration Days; and, Campus Visitation Days. 

Activity 2 Ambassador program 

Faculty Scholarship 

Activity 1 CCRR Research Subcommittee 

This strategy focuses on two approaches to enhance 
contributions of faculty scholarship. The strategy attempts to 
strike a balance between supporting skilled and experienced 
researchers as well as faculty and staff who may be less 
experienced, or who have not engaged in research recently. 
Some elements of the strategy will create opportunities for 
researchers to engage in strategic research opportunities that 

Activity 2 
Campus-wide acceptance of Boyer 
Model for Scholarship  

Page 44 of 59



7 
 

inform and support institutional practices related to student 
enrollment, retention, and academic success. The strategy will 
also include an effort to use the Boyer model of scholarship to 
generate a campus conversation about the nature and 
meaning of faculty research at Fairmont State, how faculty can 
and do apply their research skills, and how the University can 
engage in faculty development and capacity to enhance 
contributions to scholarship by faculty with a range of skills and 
experience. 

First Year Retention 

Activity 1 First Year Experience Seminar 

The First Year Retention strategy initiatives were created by 
the Campus Collaborative for Recruitment and Retention 
(CCRR), a work group comprised of professionals from 
Student Services, and faculty, academic administrators and 
staff. All applicable areas of Student Services are represented 
on the CCRR as are each of the academic units either by 
faculty, department chairs, associate deans and/or deans. 
Faculty members from fifteen academic departments 
participate in CCRR. Academic representatives also included 
staff from the University’s Advising Center.  
CCRR has recommended action steps that will have an impact 
on retention, enrollment and success toward graduation.  Two 
of these action steps related to first year retention include:  
1) Redesign and implementation of a first-year seminar for all 
students to provide support in the transition into FSU and the 
college experience;  
2) A Passport Program for first-year students to provide 
information access, mentoring and need-specific support 
activities, and opportunities to create and engage in peer 
activities and learning communities. 
Both activities include design elements that will interface with 
campus-wide offices and services, academic units, community 
partnerships and engagement/service components. 

Activity 2 Passport Program 

Page 45 of 59



8 
 

Graduate Student Success 

Activity 1 Assessment of Graduate Programs 

Development, adoption and revision of assessment structures 
for graduate programs continues as an ongoing process.  As 
new programs have been developed and implemented, the 
original Graduate Studies goals and outcomes have been 
modified to reflect the expanding nature of graduate education 
at the University which consists of five different master degree 
programs, the most recent being its Master of Architecture 
program.  Growth and increasing complexity creates for the 
Graduate Council and the colleges and schools a need to 
continuously review assessment processes that ensure sound 
academic integrity and responsive administrative and 
governance structures at the University level to support 
Graduate Studies.  The strategy will focus on efforts to improve 
success for graduate students:  
1) Provide supports through assessment of learning and 
program assessment that promote high quality academic 
experiences; and, 
2) Provide governance structures that balance institutional 
administrative needs with respect for the autonomy and 
different intellectual needs of programs. 
3) Review Graduate Studies goals and outcomes, engage in 
strategic planning and professional development to support 
program and instructional design of graduate programs. 

Activity 2 
Governance Structure of Graduate 
Programs 

Activity 3 

Value analysis; Strategic Planning; 
and design of a professional 
development agenda to support 
graduate programs 

Graduation Rates 

Activity 1 
Student success and retention in 
High DWF Courses (Title III) CST 

 
FSUs College of Science & Technology and the School of 
Business are collaborators in the design, piloting and 
implementation of a project to help students succeed in high-
risk courses, such as Physics, Chemistry, Accounting and 
Economics, by enhancing the teaching and learning 
experience. Curricula are being revitalized to include 
collaborative and experiential learning, supplemented by 
student peer mentoring programs and new instructional 
technology.   An investment of nearly $2 million through a Title 
III grant is funding a number of updates and additions to the 
College of Science & Technology and the School of Business 
to promote experiential and collaborative learning and provide 
a technology-rich environment.  As successful enhancements 
and teaching and learning experiences are identified, given 
resource availability, these approaches will be expanded to 
other academic units on campus.  In addition to the focus in 
high-risk courses in the two academic units identified above, 

Activity 2 
Student success and retention in 
High DWF Courses (Title III) 
BUSINESS 

Activity 3 

Initiatives to broaden awareness, 
professional development, activities 
and services to Veteran student 
population 

Page 46 of 59



9 
 

graduation rates among first-generation students, low-income 
students, and students from extremely rural areas are likely to 
have an adverse impact on completion.  These same 
characteristics are also likely among FSU's veteran population.  
FSU has initiated and is continuing strategic work to provide 
enhanced support to veterans as a specific population. 

Progress Toward Degree 

Activity 1 

Utilization of institutional 
assessment and research to 
examine persistence and 
progression rates 

This strategy will focus on efforts to create an institution-wide 
emphasis on the relationships between (1) retention, progress 
toward degree completion, and student success in general and 
(2) the impact of specific initiatives meant to enhance retention 
with retention serving as an indicator of progress toward 
degree.  
FSU has focused increased attention and resources over the 
last year on analyses and use of institutional data, program 
assessment and assessment of learning, and implementing 
strategies to support students in negotiating the academic and 
student life challenges of college. Activity 1 below will describe 
an effort to create better strategies at the institutional level for 
using institutional data to understand the correlations between 
macro-level metrics on retention, enrollment, and graduation 
(persistence), specific initiatives  to ensure student success, 
and which initiatives are most likely to best position students 
for success (progression). Activity 2, the FSU Writing Center, 
provides an example of a specific initiative focused on 
providing students with a support service intended to enhance 
their chances for academic success. 

Activity 2 University Writing Center 

Research and Development Not Applicable 

Student Loan Default Rate 

Activity 1 
Targeted communications to 
students offered educational loans 

Student loan default can adversely impact a student’s credit for 
many years.  It is imperative that students understand the 
rights and responsibilities that are intrinsic with educational 
debt.  This awareness starts when the student initially takes 
out the first loan, continues during the enrollment period and 
extends through the repayment period.  Students need to be 
aware of the total amount borrowed, what the projected 
monthly payments will be and what their potential earnings 
may be based upon Bureau of Labor statistics for intended 
occupations.  The focus of this strategy will be regular outreach 
to students while they are enrolled.   
Federally required entrance counseling is done by new 
borrowers through an online website developed by Department 
of Education.  This information is very important but needs to 

Activity 2 
Student access to budgeting 
information 

Page 47 of 59



10 
 

be reinforced during the student’s period of enrollment.  
Informed borrowers will be less likely to default on student 
loans.   

 

Page 48 of 59



 

 

Tab 4 

Page 49 of 59



Fairmont State University 
Board of Governors 
December 17, 2015 
 
Item:  AIMS‐Autism Individualized Mentoring and Support Program Fee Proposal 
 
Committee:      Finance Committee  
 
Recommended Resolution:  Be it resolved, that the Board of Governors approve the attached item, for 

the University. 
 
Staff Member:  Debbie Stiles   
 
Background:  The School of Education Health and Human Performance is proposing a fee for 

students who have applied and been accepted into the Autism Individualized 

Mentoring and Support Program (AIMS).  The proposed fee is only applicable 

too those students who are seeking intensive individualized supports provided 

by the AIMS program.  In summary, the proposed program fee would be used to 

pay faculty liaisons, salary and benefits for program staff, as well as stipends and 

tuition for graduate assistants (GA’s) 

  The School of Education Health and human Performance is proposing a fee of 

$5,000 per semester for each student accepted into the program.  The fee has 

been determined based upon the recommendation of Marshall University’s 

College Support Program.  It is the minimum needed to build a self‐sufficient 

college program at Fairmont State University that will pay Graduate Assistants’ 

tuition and stipends, a coordinator, and other program staff.  Comparable 

programs nationwide range from $4,000‐$8,000 depending upon the level of 

supports provided by the universities. 

 

 

 

Page 50 of 59



Page 51 of 59



Page 52 of 59



Page 53 of 59



Page 54 of 59



Page 55 of 59



Page 56 of 59



 

 

Tab 5 

Page 57 of 59



 

 

Fairmont State University 
Board of Governors 
December 17, 2015 
 
Item:  University Terrace, Building 3 Site Design Review 
 
Committee:      Committee of the Whole  
 
Recommended Resolution:  Be it resolved, that the Board of Governors approve the attached item, for 

the University. 
 
Staff Member:  Debbie Stiles   
 
Background:  As the construction of the University Terrace housing project continues and in 

an effort to ward off issues that may arise later in time, it is requested The 

Thrasher Group complete a peer review of Triad and McKinley engineer work 

and offer recommendation regarding the grading, drainage, and general site 

design of the sloped area behind Building 3. 

Given the nature of the work, it is anticipated a budget of $6,000 will cover the 

costs.   This budget will not be exceeded without prior authorization from 

Fairmont State University. 

 

Page 58 of 59



Page 59 of 59


	BOG Front Sheet Dec 2015
	Agenda December 17 2015
	1Tab
	Meeting Minutes October 22 2015
	2Tab
	August Financial Report
	September Financial Report
	October Financial Report
	3Tab
	BOG Approval  - Fall 2015 Compact Updates
	4Tab
	AIMS Proposal_BOG
	5Tab
	University Terrace, Building 3 Site Design Review.docx



